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CHAIR BAISA:
. (gavel). . . Good afternoon and welcome to the first meeting of the new
General Plan Committee for 2011. My name is Gladys Baisa. I'm the Chair of the new
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General Plan Committee, and I'd like to call this meeting to order. Today is February 3 d
and it is a little past 1:30. I'd like to make some introductions, I...before I do that I'd like
to ask everyone in the room if you have a cell phone or a Blackberry or whatever makes
noise, would you please put it on the silent mode, so that we won't be interrupted during
our meeting My Committee Members that are here today are my...and they're all voting
Members, the entire Council belongs to this Committee. My Vice-Chair Don Couch.
`

,

VICE-CHAIR COUCH: Good...good afternoon.
CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon and welcome and thank you for vice-chairing this Committee.
VICE-CHAIR COUCH: My pleasure.
CHAIR BAISA: We also have with us Bob Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Aloha.
CHAIR BAISA: Aloha. Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha.
CHAIR BAISA: Aloha. Danny Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon. Mike White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Good afternoon.
CHAIR BAISA: Good afternoon, and Joe Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good afternoon.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good afternoon, and excused this afternoon are Member
Hokama and Member Mike Victorino. From Administration we have with us today Will
Spence who is our Planning Director.
MR. SPENCE: Aloha, Madam Chair and Committee Members.
CHAIR BAISA: And he also has with him John Summers.
MR. SUMMERS: Aloha.
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CHAIR BAISA: Aloha and welcome. And I also have my ever loyal Staff. I have Clarita
Balala, my Committee Secretary, and Legislative Attorney, David Raatz. For me this is
like old home week when I chaired the Planning Committee I had this Staff and I'm ever
grateful to have them back, because I know they're terrific. So thank you very much. I
also have...we're going to be doing public testimony in a few minutes. The testimony
today will be limited to the item on our agenda which is the General Plan. We need to
sign up at the desk out there if you'd like to testify today, that's located right outside in
the lobby. You will be limited to three minutes per person with one minute to conclude,
if you really need it. State your name when you speak and tell us who you're
representing, if it's anything besides just yourself. So Members, without objections I'd
like to start public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Members. We have a few testifiers that have signed up.
Our first testifier today is Toni Davis and she'll be followed by Lucienne deNaie.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY—
MS. DAVIS: Aloha, thank you for the opportunity to testify. My name is Toni Marie Davis and
I'm here today as Executive Director of the Activities and Attractions Association, but as
I shared with you earlier; he couldn't pay me to say something I didn't believe with my
heart as a Maui resident. And I have not read this very tremendous document. I've
started a couple of times, it's extremely overwhelming, very thick, and some of the
language in it I found lacks embracing of our economic engine; the visitor industry. It
seems to be very controlling and capping, some language specifically regarding timeshare
which effects our members Activities and Attractions. I haven't been able to get out of
ARDA, which is the Timeshare Association people, a fact. The last fact that I got was
timeshare visitors spend five times more money than a regular hotel staying guest. The
reason being makes easy sense, you know, they've spent all the money up front on their
accommodations so they've got more money to spend. That means more money coming
into our economy, so having restrictions on timeshare, you know, we need the mix. What
that mix is, you know, it, it takes study. Instead of putting caps on things, I think it
should be a little bit more broad, but a, a nicer document, shorter if you could too, and
embracing our economic engine That's all I have to say thank you very much.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much, Ms. Davis. Members, questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you very much.
MS. DAVIS: Mahalo.
CHAIR BAISA: Our next testifier will be Lucienne deNaie, and Ms. deNaie will be followed by
Carol Reimann.
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MS. DENAIE: Thank you all and good day, auspicious beginning to this Committee. My name
is Lucienne deNaie. I did serve on the General Plan Advisory Committee from its
beginning to its completion. And I just wanted to give you guys a little bit of a snapshot
of how this Committee worked. Number one, the Committee reviewed a policy plan that
was Countywide as did a GPAC for Lanai and a GPAC for Molokai. The Policy Plan
combined all three Planning Commissions and GPAC's suggestion, as well as the County
staff into one document. It has been adopted by the Council.
Based on that Policy Plan, the Maui Island Plan looked at the things in that Policy Plan as
they applied to Maui Island. Yes, there's a lot of different sections to this plan, we're not
the community we were in the '70s or the '60s or even the '80s. We are in the center of a
lot of international trends and we looked at ways to kind of find our place in this new
world. Although the document is long as a whole, each of the sections is actually
relatively short, and I would urge people if they're interested in particular things, read the
section on agriculture, read the section on where the health industry or the visitor industry
fits into our economy, because that's a useful way to just see, do I like these policies, do
they work or not work.
I will say, that the GPAC realized it was a daunting task to consider all these things for
all 25 people and so we broke into smaller committees and these committees went in
detail over each of the sections, and different committees viewed different sections.
Some outstanding people served on these committees, Jeannie Skog, Chubby Vicens,
Stan Franco, Dick Mayer, Tom Cannon; people who were very respected in our
communities volunteered for these extra assignments. You didn't have to volunteer, it
was a, it was a volunteer position. As a result, a lot of the language was, you know, tried
to like consolidated and so forth and so on.
So, I guess my, my point is a lot of work has been done on this document, a lot of work
has actually been done by the former Planning Committee that did go through I think up
until about the middle of the Economic Development section. So, I would just suggest,
you know, all due respect everyone needs to get, you know, their finger on the, on the pie
here, but realize that we have heard from hundreds of people from the public; the idea
that the public didn't weigh in on this, in fact GPAC was late because we took so much
public testimony. And I know Ms. Baisa can testify to that, you know, you go when is
this public gonna go away so we can start our, our business. But we did hear from the
public quite a bit and those suggestions were incorporated in and that is all available. If
anyone is interested, they made us a CD of all the public comments both written and, you
know, recorded. Anyway, get to work but I would suggest save your time for the maps.
Aloha.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Any question for Ms. deNaie? Thank you very much. Our next
testifier will be Carol Reimann, and Ms. Reimann is the last person to have signed up to
testify prior to the meeting. If there's anyone else, if you so please go and sign up so
we'll know. Go ahead Ms. Reimann.
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MS. REIMANN: Good afternoon, Madam Chair, Members of the Committee. My name is
Carol Reimann and I represent the Maui Hotel and Lodging Association. We're the
legislative arm of the visitor industry and the visitor industry is the largest employer of
Maui County residents. While we commend all of the hard work and time and effort that
the GPAC Committee put into the Island Plan, from the visitor industry perspective we
feel that we had a lack of representation on the GPAC. And we are finding numerous
instances in various sections where we have concerns, where we need to have a voice. In
my written testimony I've outlined some of our concerns in the various sections. I won't
go over that into detail in my verbal testimony, but they include sections on population,
economic development, housing, infrastructure, and land use. As tourism is the
economic engine of Maui, we all have a responsibility and a vested interest in protecting
the industry that so many residents rely upon to survive. Because of a lack of
representation during GPAC we struggle to have a voice in the Maui Island Plan. We
encourage you to incorporate language that supports a health, healthy and vibrant visitor
industry which will ultimately benefit Maui County. The industry represents nearly
40 percent of all jobs and contributes approximately 40 percent of all real property tax
collections on Maui. MHLA is here to offer our services to the General Plan Committee,
as you review the draft Island Plan. We will provide timely testimony on relevant
sections of the plan as your agendas are made public. Please know that we are available
to answer any questions you may have in regard to the visitor industry during your
review period, and we'd be more than happy to provide you with any information you
need during your recommendations. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Ms. Reimann. Members, questions for Ms. Reimann? Seeing
none...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait!
CHAIR BAISA: Oh, . . . (inaudible). . ., Ms. Cochran, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I know I'm short. Thank you, Chair Baisa.
CHAIR BAISA: I have the same problem, I realize it. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Hi, Carol.
MS. REIMANN: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you for being here. And just curious were
you...anyone from your Association asked to be representative on GPAC, at the time?
MS. REIMANN: At the time GPAC was formulated I was not in the position that I am in now,
and I'm not quite sure what happened, what transpired back then.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay.
MS. REIMANN: But we're here now to -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MS. REIMANN: --help in any way we can -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alrighty.
MS. REIMANN: --and be part of the solution.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Great. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Any other questions for Ms. Reimann' Seeing none, Ms. Reimann, thank you
very much.
MS. REIMANN: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: We have another testimony...testifier who has signed up, we have
Ke'eaumoku Kapu. Mr. Kapu? If there's anyone else, again the Chair would ask you to
please sign up so that we can be prepared to get your testimony. Good afternoon.
MR. KAPU: Hi, aloha mai kakou.
CHAIR BAISA: Aloha.
MR. KAPU: It's good to see everybody this...this afternoon. I just wanted to put a little bit of
my perspective in this on the General Plan. One of the members that was also a part of
the General Plan was my son-in-law, basically the youngest gentleman that sat on that
council, his name is Kaipo Kekona. And it gave us a very good opportunity to look at,
you know, the scope of how the management of this, of this islands would basically go
about by being involved in a process with my son-in-law, and the things that he brought
home and the issues that was horrendous for him from the beginning on trying to make
recommendations to be placed upon this, this, this, this big plot. This, this book that was,
is supposed to guide us in the direction as island people, and I like remind this Council
that we're of an island race, and when we start thinking about economics we got to think
about the welfare and benefit of how that island, this island concept is gonna adjust itself
to make sure there's a medium to, to balance out that perspective.
I know we get a lot of economics based upon development for profit, you know, I would,
I know we got a lot of water issues, I know we got major, major issues that have a lot to
do with adopting too many policies from Disneyland and the mainland, that doesn't
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necessarily suit this island perspective. And I want you guys to really understand those
kinds of things, because when you start adopting policies that is way outside and has
nothing to do with the concept what I'm, what I'm trying to talk about. These are the
kind of long debates that we have with a family unit, my family unit when we sit down
and we look at this General Plan. And it comes from that ohana concept on how we
going live the longevity of our lives within these islands that we supposed to be able to
provide for ourselves and not be dependent on these so-called outside, I call them
distractions. Because everybody, you know, we got to have one school that teaches
people about commonality or common sense, because I think for a lot of us we lost the
common sense within ourselves to think for the betterment of our future generations
tomorrow.
It's not about the hotel industries, it's not about the development and the over
crowdedness of these so-called projects that is coming here saying that it's going to be
beneficial for all of us. It's about the people that are living on these islands that had
chose these islands to be their homes is the ones to, to...should make the decision on how
we going live out the longevity of our lives on this island as an island race. And I really
want to encourage the Council to really look deep within yourselves as pertaining to that
clear perspective when you make these decisions to carry on further for the...for your
generation tomorrow. So I mahalo you, I congratulate you for stepping up to the plate
and I wish you for all the, the, the very best of luck. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Members, questions for Mr. Kapu?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Ke'eaumoku.
CHAIR BAISA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mahalo, Ke'eaumoku. Mahalo, Chair. Can you give us
some definitions of what it is to be the island race? Certain concepts I guess you would
like to see portrayed, carried over in this plan, to reflect...
MR. KAPU: Sure. Well, first of all I sit on...I've sat on a lot of commissions in the past, I sat
on the County Cultural Resources Commission for five years. I know what that is about,
about trying to protect the integrity of its historic properties in places that is very
important, Wailuku Town is important, Lahaina is important, Paia is important. By
saving the facade of yesterday so we have that opportunity to base in the ambience of
history. But then what is overwhelming for the County Council a lot, is a lot of people
that come from outside look at these places as not a commodity and the first thing they do
is apply for demolition permits.
There's other things that needs to be heavily taken into consideration, and I, and I would
like this Council to entertain the idea of having these people that have been in the
legislation for the past four years and that's the Aha Kiole Council. The Aha Kiole
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Council and it's called the Act 39 and it just passed in the House reading. And it talks
about traditional management, and how we can man the traditions on the contemporary
management of our island perspective, into one by joining not just the leaders or the
people that was voted in the position, but the grassroot, grassrooted people to come
together and, and find an island management plan or traditional plan, where we can sit at
the table and discuss ways on how we can solve problems, how we can come up with our
island solutions so that's, that's, that's, that's, one of those venues. And I would like to
just open this up to the County Council that there is the Aha Kiole Council and also the
Act 212 that was signed by Linda Lingle in 2007. And that's the Act 212 of the Aha
Moku Council system. We've always tried to come in front of the Council in many
different venues to try to see if we could do maybe possibly a presentation in front of
everybody, which would even better the General Plan. Really better the General Plan on
how we be able to sustain ourselves by using traditions of the past on how we can fix
these problematic situations that we have today. So thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mahalo.
MR. KAPU: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Any other questions for Mr. Kapu? If not, thank you, Ke'eaumoku. Is there
anyone else who would like to present any oral testimony? Last call. Members, seeing
nobody approaching the podium, the Chair without, without objections would like to
close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
PROCEDURES;
AND
PRIORITIES
ITEM NO. 1(1): COMMITTEE'S
PRESENTATIONS FROM COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCIES
(ORIENTATION WORKSHOP BY THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING)

CHAIR BAISA: Members, we have one item before us today and when we say one item please
don't get the wrong idea, it is a large item. I have a feeling we'll be here for many
months working on this one item but it is very important. That item is General Plan 1,
Committee's Priorities and Procedures; Presentations from County Administrative
Agencies, Orientation Workshop by the Department of Planning. The description of this
item today is that pursuant to Rule 7B of the Rules of the Council, the Committee intends
to have an orientation workshop to be conducted by the Department of Planning. The
workshop may cover such topics as the General Plan framework as established in Chapter
2.80B, the Countywide Policy Plan as enacted by Ordinance No. 3732 (2010), the draft
Island Maui Plan...the, the, the Draft Maui Island Plan and the existing community plans,
and upcoming community plan updates.
-8-

GENERAL PLAN COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 3, 2011

The Chair would like to explain why we're having a workshop today. When we, after the
election saw that we were the Members of this Committee and I was the new Chair and
that all of the Council Members are now Members of this General Plan Committee. The
Chair spent some time thinking about it and talking and I waited until we had a new
Planning Director, and the minute I heard who he was I called him and said we have
work to do. How are we gonna go ahead? And 'cause, you know, it is imperative that
we work with the Planning Department 'cause they're the staff who do all the legwork
for us. We'll, we'll be doing work but they'll be doing most of the heavy lifting here in
drafting things and doing all the writing and doing all the correcting and copying and
researching and whatever. So, it was important that we work together and together I
explained to the new Planning Director that I thought because he was the new Planning
Director, although he is not a stranger to the General Plan or to planning, he's been here
for a very long time. He's been on both sides of planning, both as a member of the
Department and as a private consultant helping people who do planning. I thought it was
important that he is kind of new to this General Plan process and how this Committee
operated. And there are only four of us left from the last review; myself and Member
Pontanilla, Member Mateo, and Member Victorino are the four holdovers, and we have
five new Council Members. Although two of them are returning, but new in the sense
that they were not here during that last Planning Committee's review of what we did.
We also have of course the public that is very interested in this plan and I've been very
gratified to see that every time these Committees meet, people come from the
community, people care, people are interested. And since I've received this Committee
I've had many, many phone calls, emails, people stop me everywhere and say they want
to talk about the General Plan. And it seems like, in my opinion that there is still a great
need for people to understand what the plan is, what it means to them, and what it
contains, and how was it put together; and some of them still want to have input on the
policies and, and the information and the rules that are in the plan. So, I thought that
maybe the best thing for us to do was to catch everybody and get everybody up to speed
again.
So what we are planning to do, and this will be covered again in the workshops, so don't,
don't worry if you forget what I'm saying, but I think it's important you understand what
we're going to do. We're going to review Chapters 1 to 7. We are going to look at the
narratives, we're going to look at the policies that have...and goals and everything that is
in the plan so far. I'll be working with Mr. Spence, we will be producing matrices so you
can see, every time we do an agenda we'll make sure that we also have a matrix
available. We've had a lot of complaints with people saying we don't know what you're
talking about, we can't find it on the web, it's too hard to do this or that. So we want to
make sure that we make a lot of information available and that we agendize carefully so
that when you come to the meeting, if we're gonna be talking about population, which
will be the first chapter we do, we will be talking about population. So if you want to
talk about maps or other things this is not the session you want to come to. You want to
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come to hear...prepared to talk about population so that we spend our time wisely, that
the testimony that is given is pertinent, and that the Members and you...and the people
that come to help or send in testimony, we have relevant information before us and we
can look at what we have, we can listen to what everybody says, we can talk about it, and
we can make a decision. And we're going to go in an or...in order, Chapters 1 to 7 and
when we're all done with that then we will proceed with 8, which is the maps and I know
everybody's wanting to get into the maps. I get more phone calls about that than
anything else, more visits; my line is not where I want it to be, my projects not in, my
projects out, you know, I don't want this there I want it over there. But no sense doing
that until we get to the maps. So we're going to start and we're going to do baby steps,
okay.
Today we're going to talk about what the plan is, how we got to where we are; the
Countywide Policy Plan and how this whole thing works, Bill 84, and then we will begin
to review the Chapters 1 to 7. And I am hopeful that we will proceed in an expeditious as
well as complete manner. We've got to get this done guys, we can only defer it for so
long, we're already late, we don't want to be later. So, I ask everyone to please help by
being relevant, by being helpful, and cooperative, and I don't want us to spend a lot of
time wordsmithing. If you think the word should be big instead of large, if you don't
mind I'm going to ask the Committee's indulgence to leave that to Staff at the end when
we're done to wordsmith. But I don't want to spend time, you know, about those kinds
of things, because what we're looking here for is big picture, your ideas. We don't want
it there we want it over here, we need to know that, okay.
So that's what I'm going to try to do. This is a huge task. I'm personally kind of nervous
because, you know, in my opinion this is probably the most important document that
Maui County is going to produce, next to our community plans and it's a 20-year plan
we're looking at, this is not for two days. We're gonna impact things that happen on
Maui for the next 20 years. So I want you as well as my Members to realize this is a very
important trust that we have before us. The decisions we make in this room are going to
affect us and all the people that come behind us for the next 20 years and maybe even
longer, actually until it's changed and we all know that changing it on time never
happens.
So please this is a very serious responsibility we have here. I ask everyone to please do
their homework. I'll try to agendize carefully and make the documents available that you
need so you can do your homework and study for the meetings. But we've got to work
together, and if we all come here and we're all prepared I think we can kind of move
through this very quickly.
I think the last Committee did a very good job, but it still needs some tweaking and we'd
like our Planning Director to have that opportunity, we'd like the people to have an
opportunity, and we want you new Members to have your opportunity. So that's what I
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am planning to do. Today I'm going to ask Mr. Spence if he'd like to make a few
comments before we get into the presentation.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Chairman?
CHAIR BAISA: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: --by all means.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Before we move forward -CHAIR BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --I, I, I just have a quick question over here.
CHAIR BAISA: Yes
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I know we suppose to have been completed last October.
Did we ever extend the date so that, you know, we can continue the discussion and
maybe we need some guidance from either Mr. Ueoka or, or Mr. Raatz?
CHAIR BAISA: It's my understanding that we kind of forgave ourselves and said okay we
didn't make the deadline so now we keep on moving, but I can have Mr. Raatz clarify
that. David, what is our timeline?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Madam Chair. The Code provides for the Council to act within one
year of receiving the transmittal from the Planning Department. That one year period
expired in October of last year. We consulted with the Department of the Corporation
Counsel on the impact of the failure to meet that deadline, and the advice was that that's
not actually a legally meaningful deadline. The Council can extend the deadline by
resolution, whatever it chooses, and I think that's what happened with the Countywide
Policy Plan, as well. So to provide guidance to the body itself, the, the Council may wish
to establish a new target date by formally extending the deadline by resolution, but... so
currently at this moment we don't have a target date that has been established.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Raatz. And Mr. Pontanilla
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yes
CHAIR BAISA: --what the Chair would like to do, because we are a new Committee and we're
getting off to a new start here, I would like to see how this Committee functions for a
couple of meetings and then decide how much time we're going to need. You know, if
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this Committee works well together and we're into pertinent and moving things along, I
think I can forecast better how much time we're going to need, but I won't know that
until we actually get into doing one of the chapters. So with your indulgence I'd like to
wait at least another meeting or two before we set a deadline.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Fine, thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Chair would like to note the presence of Member Hokama. Thank
you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Madam Chairman, Members of the, the General Plan Committee.
My name is William Spence. I'm the Planning Director for Maui County. What I would
like to do, since it's this Committee will be making edits and changes to the plan I would
like to give you a little bit of my perspective. I think most of the Members here know
that I was a Staff Planner for ten years and during that, that ten years from 1992 to 2002,
I helped...I was staff for a lot of the community plans, Upcountry, Makawao, Pukalani,
Kula, Paia, Haiku, I was even Staff Planner for the Molokai Community Plan. And so
I'm very familiar with, you know, how the plans were used, how they were formulated.
And then when those community plans were pau then I returned to being, you know,
more permit processing, changes in zoning, SMA permits those kinds of things. So then I
as a... from a staff perspective I was involved with implementing those plans. How do
these policies then apply or why don't they apply or, you know, so I'm, I'm fairly well
versed on the staff side of how the...some of the difficulties in applying the General Plan
on the community plans or what good things they did.
Then even...on...when I left the County eight years ago I became a consultant mostly for
the, for the small landowners, getting an SMA permit so a client could fulfill his
obligations for a, you know, a retirement fund for his employees. You know, gentleman
wanting to build a couple of houses for his kids, those kind of things. So then I'm
dealing with the community plans and the General Plan on the private side. How does
this impact the, the small landowner, the homeowner?
And, so when...what I'm going to do for this Committee is one, I would like to be a
resource to you. But two, what I'm going to suggest as we go through the different
elements and we look at the different language of the plan, I'm going to have suggestions
for this Committee on how to edit. I go through the, the plan as it's, as it's been and I see
things where there's going to be unintended consequences, where there's going to be
requirements for ordinances that, you know, you think about those ordinances maybe you
don't want to implement those things or you want to change the wording a little bit so it's
fair for all landowners or, you know, whatever the case may be. So I'm going to be
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looking at it, at the plan from a very practical point of view. You know, of course it's up
to the Committee to review whatever, you know, the Planning Director is suggesting to
you. Ultimately it's, you know, it will come down to what this Committee decides. But I
would like to be a resource to you and I would like my staff to be a resource to you. So
with that, Madam Chair, if we would like to proceed with the overview.
CHAIR BALSA: I'll ask the Members if they have any questions, otherwise we'll take a brief
recess to bring the screen down so that we can watch the presentation, okay. No
problem? Okay. Meeting will be in recess for a few moments while we bring the screen
down. . . (gavel).. .
RECESS: 2:05 p.m.
RECONVENE: 2:07 p.m.
CHAIR BAISA: . . . (gavel). .. Will the meeting please come back to order. Planning
Department will proceed if...I know that we have Staff helping us. Staff would you
kindly introduce yourself and proceed.
MS. BOSCO: Yes. Thank you, Chair Baisa. Hello, Members. Welcome to the new Members.
My name is Simone Bosco. I'm a Senior Staff Planner with the Department of Planning
and I have been on this project from the moment the Countywide came to be here in this
Chambers, all the way over to where we are now. So it's, it's, it's really an exciting time
and I really enjoy working with all of you, and I hope that this next session will be
equally as enjoyable for you.
I'm gonna do a brief overview of the General Plan and a little bit about the Countywide
Policy Plan. I just wanted to kind of provide an introduction to what a General Plan is,
and then a little later on in the presentation John Summers will head into the Maui Island
Plan review.
Okay, so just to start out this is our agenda, what is a General Plan, and we'll speak a
little to Maui County Code 2.80B, we'll go into the plan documents and we will explain
what the process has been to date, and then we'll end with a little bit of the Maui Island
Plan and next steps.
Okay so what is a General Plan? In Maui County we have 11 separate plan documents;
all of them provide direction for future growth and policy creation in the County. We
have here a 20-year timeframe for the Maui County General Plan, and so what we have is
the Countywide basically being a 20-year plan, Maui Island being a 20-year plan with 10
year updates and the community plans being updated every 10 years, as well but having a
20-year horizon. The entire General Plan is intended to be comprehensive, and what does
that mean? Well in planning, what that means is that it considers and weighs into a
number of areas which affect the people that live here. The General Plan, comprehensive
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plans don't just deal with land use issues alone, they deal with social issues; things like
education, social services, housing, historic preservation, environmental issues.
Basically, they bridge across a lot of areas which affect quality of life for the citizens
here. So we want to emphasize that it's not just about land here. It's about how
does...how do the people meet their needs and what kind of policies can the General Plan
provide to support meeting those needs over a 20-year period.
That leads me to the next point. It really is a community driven process and we want to
try and encourage as much participation by the public as possible. We'd like to cast a
very wide net and throughout the process we've done that through a number of different
venues. One of those venues started in 2003, launching Focus Maui Nui which basically
engaged about 1,600 citizens and participants. The recommendations of Focus Maui Nui
gave us the basis for building a, a Countywide Plan which also gave us a framework for
the following ten documents.
We also have been meeting with the community, we've had the General Plan...Advisory
Plan...General Plan Advisory Committee meetings. We've had public hearings. We also
have a website available with an email for citizens to write in. And of course we're
always available on deck in the offices, and we've had various workshops as well and
public outreach events. And here we are, as well, right now trying to engage with the
public.
The next point is what does the plan do in whole? It provides direction to decision
makers and also departments on how to meet current and future community needs. It
provides a framework and that framework is designed to provide some kind of structure
for the future development of community plans. So I'll get a little bit into the framework
later on, you'll see how that works. And of course it's defined by Maui County Code
2.80B.
Okay, so I'm just gonna speak to the highlights of 2.80B. It's...this is a Chapter in the
Maui County Code and it defines the legal status content and process for developing the
entire General Plan, including the community plans. 2.80B also redefined the General
Plan from what it was before to emphasize regional island-wide planning. Therefore, it
calls for a directed growth strategy, particularly in the Maui Island Plan and the outer
islands. It also set up the General Plan Advisory Committees for both the Maui
Island...for all of the plans really, Countywide, Maui Island Plan, and the community
plans.
This question comes up a lot and I expect it will come up again, what is the Legal effect
of the General Plan? Is it a guideline or a law? And it's both. It's a guideline in a way
that it provides direction and assistance to departments and decision makers on how to
decide on the various issues. In some cases, it will provide or it will breathe life into the
creation of programs or additional regulations, ordinances, or in CIP programs. In other
cases, depending on how this specific text is worded it, it...the, the...a policy within a
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General, within a General Plan at any level could have regulatory effect in and of itself.
This is especially true with the Maui Island Plan, so as the Members and the public
review the Maui Island Plan Policies, we would encourage you to ask that question of
staff, what would the policy implications be for, for a statement? Would it have a
regulatory effect or would it generally provide a guideline for the creation of policies or
other ordinances?
And I've had, I put here an excerpt of a section of 2.80B just to underscore why the
General Plan is a law. And I would encourage all of the Members to read 2.80B so they
know the process, and I think I'll read just the first sentence of this, "All agencies shall
comply with the General Plan". Maybe the second sentence too. ... (laughter)...
"Notwithstanding any other provision, all community plans, zoning ordinances,
subdivision ordinances, and administrative actions by agencies shall conform to the
General Plan." And this includes budgets and capital improvement programs, okay.
This is the framework of the General Plan as it's, as it existed before the Countywide was
adopted. Basically, we have the General Plan at the top which has been substituted with
the Countywide Plan. Both of those plans are essentially very similar. Neither of them
have maps. Underneath that in the former General Plan we had nine community plans.
Today we have the Countywide Plan, no map; and we have one new plan, the Maui
Island Plan which is regional in nature and the rest of the nine community plans. I'd just
like to point out that the concept of a regional plan such as the Island Plan is not new.
Both the outer islands are island wide regional plans. So, we've been doing this for a
while but not for this island. So this is a very important step in the future of this County
as we try and look at regional issues such as infrastructure systems, roadways, and we,
we try and provide a framework in...we try and establish a regional perspective before
we get into the more detailed community plans.
The role of the General Plan. Okay. I'd like to ask you all to study this a little, I'm
gonna try and explain it. On the left hand side, the General Plan provides the basis for
developing regulations and on the left side, you'll see zoning ordinances and maps, other
land use regulations, including other ordinances in the Maui County Code or things like
special management area regulations and also land use permits. So as a permit comes in
the General Plan will be consulted and it may even highlight some need for amending the
laws that are currently on the books.
On the right side, the General Plan provides the basis for public facility plans, which are
basically blue prints for the agencies and departments to follow as they, as they invest in
infrastructure or as we go forward in capital improvement planning, project planning,
okay. And both of these are basically, both of these sides basically in the final analysis
provide an implementation of the General Plan as a whole.
Traditional General Plan elements across the country include all of these bullet points,
land use, transportation, housing, even implementation and monitoring and evaluation.
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Across the country you'll see these types of elements even though they're structured
differently between jurisdictions, they're all intended to be comprehensive in nature.
And we also have a lot of issue interplay in general plans, environmental social
economic, we have design issues, physical.., physical planning issues, and there are
sometimes tradeoffs and this is where the...in terms of the Focus Maui Nui outreach,
participants of that outreach really, really recommended a balanced approach to decision
making. And what they said was in fact, and it is contained in the studies that we have in
the office, when there is a tradeoff the participants by and large mostly favored
preservation of the environment, cultural assets, and island identity over even
improvements in infrastructure and economic interest, and that was very noteworthy. So
really the priority for most of the people that live here is to protect the environmental
interest, the cultural interest, and the island identity. So it's just something to keep in
mind as we go forward. Even though all of those are important issues some of these
tradeoffs come up, and really one of the things that also can be developed as we go
forward, our developing strategies that take all of these competing interests into
consideration. So sometimes you can address competing interests simultaneously.
What makes a good General Plan? It's comprehensive as we've been talking about. It's
internally consistent. That means between each of the 11 documents we strive to be
consistent and not have conflicts between the elements. So what we do in our office is, is
we constantly weigh into the other, the other overarching plans to make sure we're not
being redundant in some cases, or at least being in conflict with the other policies in the
prior documents. They're also clear and they provide specific policies in implementation
measures. And by implementation measures I mean to do lists for the agencies, to do
lists for the decision makers, such as where do we need to put infrastructure and how
much is it going to cost and who's going to be responsible, things like that. They're
fiscally responsible, which means we look at project costs and we make sure how
it's...how we're going to even do what we set out to do. So we weigh into what the
fiscal implications of the plan might be and also open an honest public debate, and that's
what public participation is all about. And we, we strive to include that in the General
Plan process, in fact it's the bulk of our budget ... (chuckles) ... because it's so important.
Regional planning, just explain this so you don't have to read it all, but basically
it's saying here, "Regional planning, island-wide planning is important. The perspective
of regional planning is important to have before embarking upon community plan
processes." As an example, infrastructure doesn't really cross, or I mean doesn't stop,
sorry, at community plan lines. Infrastructure systems are across the island; therefore, in
order to plan island-wide systems we have to...you have to grapple with these issues
before we start looking at the more focused communities. Basically, decision
maker...decisions made in one community plan area can have a, a very large impact on
the quality of life and opportunities in another community plan area. So we want to
consider these issues regionally before we embark upon weighing into each community.
Okay.
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We have been looking at a lot of different general plans over the last five years and we
found that they range in size greatly and also sometimes in content, but essentially
they're very large. And this is an example of kind of the...couple of the plans that we,
we looked at. The Kauai General Plan which was completed in 2000 is 219 pages.
Hawaii County is 434. Without the appendices in all cases the Maui Island Plan fits right
in between those two, so we're right, we're right within range and this again is without
the appendices. We have also the Kona Community Development Plan which has been
greatly praised, again that's one region of an island at 277, and then going down the list
you'll see here the County Santa Barbara plan is over 2,000 pages. City of Santa Barbara
almost 300 and then there's several others that are fairly large. Of course, the Marin
Countywide Plan it, it does include many communities within the area but that's 526. So
that was just to give you guys a perspective on where we fit and we do fit comfortably
within the range, in terms of size.
Now we'll start going into a little bit about the, the General Plan documents. I'll start
with the Countywide Plan and John will take over with the Maui Island Plan, and then we
will not be getting so much into the community plans today, because we're...that's not
the subject of our work here. But I wanted to just explain in terms of their rules,
Countywide provided a very, very, very broad policy framework and it had to, because a
lot of the issues Countywide are...we had...what we had to do is keep them broad for
Countywide because each island is very different. And so in order to develop a plan that
could apply to the entire County, it by nature needed to be very aspirational and
visionary. Maui Island Plan in contrast emphasizes a directed growth strategy, regional
island wide planning and, it emphasizes CIP budgeting and implementation. It also
respects and weighs into the unique character of many different regions of the island but
we leave the more specifics to the community plan process, and that process will be
intended to be much more urban form and designed based, so we'll get into very specific
design issues and localized issues.
Countywide, and this is where I'll end. I, I was on staff and helped shepherd the policy
plan through all of the GPACs of all the islands, all of the Planning Commissions and the
County Council Planning Committee. It was a very lengthy process, however; it, it
provided at the end of the day, actually a plan we can be proud of. It has 11 different
elements; they're very similar in nature to the Maui Island Plan elements. It was adopted
last year in March and we do have copies of it by the way, if anybody would like copies.
I, I wanted to ask that of the Members. But it does, it does have five different sections.
Section 4 basically contains the goals, objectives, and policies of the plan and is really the
meat of the plan. Okay. And that actually in size is really the same size as the former
General Plan, I just wanted to say, but the other four sections have narrative, narrative
pieces and they just provide background in context for the rest of the plan. Okay. And
I'm going to turn it over to John Summers now and we'll head into the Maui Island Plan
and some of the submittals that we've already provided to the County Council.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Simone. Before you, before you pass it over, Members, if you
have a burning question that you want to ask at this time, Chair would allow that. Or
should we just move on?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Move on.
CHAIR BAISA: Move on. Okay. Alright, John. Thank you.
MR. SUMMERS: Okay. Thank you very much. Let's get under the hood of the Maui Island
Plan. This, this slide here shows the two major documents that were transmitted to the
Council in late 2009. The, the picture on the left is actually the Director's report. The
Director's report was transmitted in October. It basically includes the Planning
Director's recommendation, as well as the recommendations from the General Plan
Advisory Committee, the Planning Commissions, and, and overall of the description of
the process that we used. We also included in the pocket of that document a digital
version of all of our technical studies. The, the document on the right is the draft
narrative Maui Island Plan, so that was transmitted in December of 2009.
Okay. There, there are four basic principles that Long Range Division staff tried to hold
true to throughout the process. The first, and I think this is really important, is that we
encouraged everybody to be bold, and what do we mean by being bold. The basic
thought was that it's, it's better to address the long term challenges that face our
community than to pass along those challenges to future generations. Obviously, when
we tackled these, these big issues they were controversial, they're difficult, but we felt
and we encouraged everybody to look...take a hard look at these, at these areas and do
what we can to address them.
The second major principle which is true with all comprehensive planning is you've got
to have good data, you've got to have good data, good information because that's going
to make sure that your policy structure is in form. So a lot of emphasis went into
building the databases and the studies that would make sure that our document was
rigorous.
A third area that we tried to encourage as we went through the process, was that we tried
to comply with best practice. There are many instances in the State of Hawaii and other
communities where they've had good, good success with growth management strategy or
with economic revitalization, so we tried to use that experience to our advantage.
And, and the fourth area that's, that's really critical is to respect the process. We've had
tremendous input throughout the entire process. We wanted to make sure that we could
connect the dots from that input that was received to the policies that were purposed.
And then looking a little higher just more really at planning principles.
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One of the big issues that pops up is who are we planning for? And when we talk about
that we're really, we're really looking at the issue of are we, are we thinking of and
considering all parts of our society, particularly those parts of our society that don't have
a chair at the table today, and that would get back to future generations which we'll talk
about in a minute. And that also it's, it's really not a question of if we're going to grow
but rather how is that growth going to occur. And our long-term forecast, we've worked
over the years with the Department of Business, Economic Development, and Tourism,
they provide population forecasts for, for the whole State. These forecasts have been
very accurate over time, and, and the idea is that this growth can have a very positive
effect or a very negative effect really depending on how we approach it. Accommodating
growth doesn't have to be viewed as a zero sum game and I think this is really important
as we move through this process. Where there are economic opportunities brought about
by growth, it doesn't have to compromise our natural and cultural resources.
A few examples, revitalization is an area where we can concentrate to accommodate our
economic growth. That type of growth can really strengthen our communities. Infill is
another great opportunity. We have many areas on the island that have...are job rich but
housing poor. We could bring housing into those areas and actually improve an existing
condition. In fact, the best planning is actually looking at, at it and planning for more
rather than planning for less. That, that is really the worst planning you could do. And
again seven generations, we've got to make sure that as we go through this process we
think about those folks who are going to come in behind us.
One of the important things here in Hawaii, it was sort of accentuated during the recent
rain storms is that we have to look at our integrated watershed and, and coastal zone
management planning. We've got great models that go back a hundred years that have
proven to be successful, so that's something that we can build on. And I think that above
all, particularly in, in these current times it's, it's very important to remember that the
Maui Island Plan is a long-term plan. It's really intended to address the long-term trends
that are affecting our communities, and over the next...over the course of the next 20
years we're going to have various economic cycles, we'll have periods of time when
we'll have big booms in our economy like we had between 2004 and 2006. We'll have
downturns, downturns hopefully not quite as severe as what we've experienced in the last
three years. But I think the major thing is, if we develop this, this plan to address a
current economic cycle we're, we're really making a mistake.
The types of long-term trends that this plan can effectively address would be the, the, the
gradual growth that we're expected to experience over the coming years. The aging of
our population, this is a very significant issue, a long-term trend that this plan can, can
address. Rising energy costs, the effect...housing affordability gap, there's long-term
data that shows that housing prices have exceeded incomes and that's a big structural
problem that we need to deal with. The need to compete in a global economy, both from
an education perspective and also from a community perspective. We compete with
resorts all over the world, it's getting easier for people to, to get to those areas. If we
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compromise the, the value of our resort experience, we compromise our economy. And
our aging infrastructure systems, that's a, a very significant issue that, that this plan can
help to address.
Looking at the overall framework for the development of the plan, it's pretty similar to
planning processes that are used in other communities. The left side of the chart really
provide us...provides the steps that we took to help define existing conditions, so very
heavy on public participation, and then we had all of our technical studies; 23 technical
studies to work with. The middle part of the chart really helps us define where do we
want to go over the next 20 years, and that is displayed in Chapters 1 to 7. So
one... Chapters 1 to 7 of the Maui Island Plan provide the overall policy framework
of...for the Island. And then the right hand side of the chart is really the implementation
part of the document, Chapters 8 and 9. So that would be the directed growth strategy
and the infrastructure sections.
2.80B has a very rigorous and formal public review process. It started with the Planning
Department, so the ordinance if you look through it calls for things like charettes and
public outreach activities. So there were a number of things that the Planning
Department did very early in the process to help inform our recommendations. We then
had the General Plan Advisory Committee, 25 members appoint...appointed by the
Council and the Mayor from all different areas of the County representing a range of
economic interests, different stakeholder groups, different ages, a very diverse group of,
of people who were very instrumental in helping the Department develop the draft. We
then had the Planning Commissions. The Planning Commissions were also well
represented and, and helped provide important comments on the draft plan. The plan is
then forwarded to the County Council for fmal review and adoption, and as we discussed,
the 2010 Planning Committee did review the first seven chapters of the Maui Island Plan.
I wanted to, to highlight some of the other activities that occurred in the process.
Decisions Maui, many of you might be familiar with that process, a very robust public
involvement process that was done as part of the previous community plan update. We
did look at that and used some of those findings. Mayor Apana, back in 2001, held
what's called the Smart Growth Workshop. Some of you may be, may have been
involved in that. That was important in terms of setting a vision and core values for the
Island. The Focus Maui Nui process that Simone talked about. We had the WalkStory
and PlanStory events. Those were big, broad-based, public outreach events. Many of
you, I remember seeing at those events. The Wailuku Main Street Association held
numerous planning workshops that provided very valuable information to our planning
effort. Likewise, Maui Tomorrow held regional growth planning workshops. The
Planning Department held design charrettes in each community plan region and the
Planning Commission met in every community plan region, as well as the GPAC. We
have also had newspaper, radio shows, public access TV, e-mail blasts, and of course the
website. So we've tried to triangulate, get as much input, there's more work that needs to
be done but this is important for the overall process. In a nutshell, again we tried to cast
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as wide a net as possible to get community input and make sure that this represents the
people's desires.
Looking at the Maui Island Plan, it is divided by elements, the Island Plan embodies the
key features of a comprehensive plan. I...it is generally accepted best practice to
organize these documents by element, with each element including both narrative
analysis and policies in both graphic and text form. This is support of our planning
literature and is reflected in General Plans throughout Hawaii and throughout the country.
The Maui Island Plan is organized in an introduction in these ten standalone elements.
Okay, looking at the typical organization of an element starts with the background
information. This is a real summary of some of the work in the technical studies: the
challenges and opportunities; goals, objectives, and policies; action plans; and maps. The
plans' elements are consistent with best practice in, in, in community plan regions and
comport with the requirements of 2.80B.
It's very important to know that the policy statements should be read in the context of the
narrative describing existing conditions. This is important because the narrative
describes the rationale for the policies, which in turn provide direction for future
interpretation. Without the planning narrative in the, in the data it's much harder to
connect the dots. To facilitate reference you'll noted, notice that the document includes a
numbering system, so that people can find the policies they have questions about.
Okay, this is kind of a, a slide that analyzes, well, how do we get from a general
aspiration to a specific program. This is the overall plan-making thread. We're going to
become very familiar with how to construct these goals, objectives, and policy statements
as we, as we move through the process.
Touching on a goal statement, a goal, a good goal statement is generally a statement
about what a community wants to aspire to. A set of goals might describe a picture of
what a community wants to look like in 20 years. Goals represent 'ends' This is very
important. We've always had to encourage people, don't write the goals statement like a
policy statement. It, it, it describes an end state. A good example of a goal statement
would be, "Maui will meet its energy needs through local sources of clean renewable
energy through conservation and other measures."
Going to the next one, if you look at an objective statement, object, objectives, good
objectives make a comprehensive plan very rigorous. An objective should provide a
specified end, condition or state that is an intermediate step towards reaching your goal.
It should be achievable and when possible measurable and time-specifics.
It's important to note that objectives are not mandates; they're bench marks to try to
strive toward the attainment of your goal. An example of a good objective statement
would be, "By 2015 more than 30 percent of Maui's electricity will be produced from
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locally produced clean renewable energy sources, 50 percent by 2025 and 70 percent by
2030." Looking at policy statements: a policy is a specific statement that provides
direction to decision-makers. A policy is based on and implements an objective. A
policy should be clear and unambiguous. Adopting broadly drawn and vague policies is
poor practice. An example of a good policy statement would be, "to support the upgrade
of Maui's power grid to integrate renewable energy sources or renewable energy for
multiple sources". It's really important to note that the construction of a policy statement
determines whether it is a guideline or a regulation. So when we use terms like
"prohibit", "require" or "shall" it is much stronger, it becomes more regulatory. If we use
words like "encourage" or "may", it is more of a guideline. In some instances, we'll
want the policies to be very strong and in others, we'll want them to be a little softer.
Looking at the actions: an action is a set of specific tasks intended to achieve agreed
upon goals, objectives, and policies. Actions should identify specific activities to be
undertaken in the future. Typical actions include: revisions to ordinances, the
development of master plans or programs and the like. An example of a, of an action
would be to develop, develop a property tax incentive and/or exemptions for renewable
energy production. It's important to note that not all policies in the document have
actions that correspond to them. It is not necessary to have an action for every policy
statement. And actions may call for the development of future regulations, but these
actions are not self-executing. People have been confused about that; these actions
people don't...if there's an action calling for a development of a regulation, that is very
different than saying you have to immediately comply with that action upon the adoption
of the plan, they're not self-executing.
And this is where the rubber really hits the road. You take all of these things together,
you have your implementation program which is required by 2.80B. It's a coordinated
series of policies and actions to carry out a plan. You have to identify the party, provide
your best estimate on when the action can occur, establish a milestone, link the action to
the budget.
Okay, the document does include maps where applicable to each element. Background
maps are informational in nature and are intended to help the reader understand existing
conditions that have influenced proposed policy. And some of the maps have policy or
some of the elements have policy maps. A policy map is a graphic expression of a plan's
policies. Many types of policies lend themselves well to graphic treatment, such as the
distribution of land use or natural resource policies. Policy maps are primarily intended
to provide guidance to future regulations, management plans or facility plans. Please
note that all of the directed growth maps are policy maps and they do have a regulatory
effect. We also have a new map book, the Maui Island Plan Map Book which is up on the
website, which allows us to see the directed growth boundaries as they relate to parcel
lines. The digital version has also been transmitted to the, to the members.
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There's seven basic highlights in the Maui Island Plan: the first is the adoption of the
directed growth strategy. Throughout the process, there was a tremendous amount of
public support to protect our small towns and our rural character, so we've tried to
include a number of policies to insure that that happens. Economic vitality, addressing
our affordable housing issues are big themes in the document, a lot of concerns expressed
about our watersheds and our coastal resources. So we have a number of areas that, that
address those concerns.
One of the areas that's a, a really tremendous opportunity for us is to improve the
coordination of our land use and infrastructure planning. So there's a section in Chapter
9 of the document, the coordinated infrastructure planning strategy that is intended to
help facilitate that.
Urban growth boundaries, very important part of the document. An urban growth
boundary is basically a line on the map showing the demarcation between land that has or
may receive development. It could be an urban type of development, a country town or a
rural type of development and land that may receive less development, i.e. agriculture.
On one side of the line, you're going to have development proposed, and on the other
side of the island or the other side of the line, you're not. It's important to note that the
urban growth boundaries will improve transparency in a decision-making and
development process. It provides a clear picture of what lands will be developed over a
given period of time. The idea being that there shouldn't be a lot of surprises and this
goes for the broader community as well as policymakers as well as those who are
planning infrastructure. Communities throughout Hawaii and across the nation have had
very successful growth management strategies based around urban growth boundaries.
Some of the benefits of urban growth boundaries: they encourage revitalization in infill
and they encourage reinvestment in infrastructure. The reinvestment in infrastructure is
important because it becomes a lot more cost effective to develop the infrastructure if
you've got clear effort, urban growth boundaries. They discourage sprawl, they
encourage multimodal transportation options, and they can increase housing opportunities
near jobs.
Okay, looking back at the policy statements and the vision in the, in the Maui Island Plan,
there were four central themes that came out in terms of establishing the directed growth
boundary. Theme one was basically to limit development in Northwest and East Maui.
Nobody throughout the process advocated large, new urban expansion in these two
regions. A second theme that, that plays throughout the document is to protect the
islands' prime agricultural lands. A third area and this is very important was to direct
growth to areas proximate to existing employment centers where infrastructure and
public facility capacity can be provided cost effectively and where housing can be
constructed affordably. It's much easier to bring housing to existing job centers than to
do it in the reverse. Okay, there have been communities...even Oahu, is struggling with,
with its proposed new towns to develop communities that are self-sufficient, because jobs
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generally gravitate either to natural resources or infrastructure like harbors and airports.
So, we have opportunities on Maui to bring housing to areas that are short, that have jobs
thereby creating these self-sufficient communities and making the island a better place to
live.
Some other major themes from the directed growth strategy are to protect our lifestyle
and our cultural, promote sustainable land use planning, protect our open space, promote
equitable development. Again, the process should be transparent, the process should be
efficient and the plan for adequate public facilities in infrastructure. Again, Chapter 9 of
the document seeks to, to really improve that process.
Looking at where we've been with the Council to date, we had our first orientation
meeting with the 2010 Planning Committee in December of 2009. The, the Planning
Committee went through the first seven chapters in the document. In January and
February, before we actually began the review of the, of the document, the Council's
Planning Committee held public meetings in all of the community plan regions which
was very important.
In terms of the Council timeframe, the, the goal is to try to efficiently move through the
document, and, and to do that our overall objective is to try to get through the first seven
chapters before the budget, okay, doing the, the final pass through those chapters. And
then, in early June after the Budget, to dig into the directed growth strategy and the
implementation sections. The law-ability for 2.80(B) does require a public hearing
before final adoption, followed of course by our first and second reading.
Some general suggestions in terms of making sure the review process is, is efficient is, is
to study the elements before the meetings. If there are questions about certain areas, the
technical studies provide a lot more detail to review the matrices, whether it be the four
column matrix from the previous Planning Committee, to get the GPAC and Planning
Commission recommendations; or the proposed recommendations from the previous
committee and the new, new Director's recommendations. And then to work through the
document and addressing the goals, objectives, policies and actions followed by the maps
in that element. Of course we'll have the final adoption of the plan. If we can focus on
the major pukas, fatal flaws, we'll get through this efficiently. If we get into
wordsmithing, we could be down the rabbit hole for a long time.
This is the four-column matrix that was created by the previous Planning Committee, and
this will be the basis for the three-column matrix that we'd like to work with going
forward. You look at the three-column matrix, the idea is to take the 2010 Planning
Committee's recommendation, drop that recommendation into the, into the second
column there on the matrix. The Planning Director will be introducing some additional
amendments, those will go in the... in the...in the third column and then the fourth
column would be the, the general, the far-right column would be the General Plan
Committee's recommendation.
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And staff is very excited to work with, with the Committee. We're here to help you and
facilitate this process. Thank you very much.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you Mr. Summers. Members, if there are burning questions, we'll take
them; otherwise, if we can take our afternoon break. Any questions? Seeing none,
Members, we will take an afternoon break, that's for ten minutes and if you could please
come back we can wrap this up. Thank you. Meeting is now in recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

2:55 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:08 p.m.

CHAIR BAISA: . . . (gavel). . . Will the meeting please come back to order. I'd like to thank
the Planning Department very much for that presentation. Members, before I move on
I'd like to ask you if you've had a minute to think about it, if you have any questions
you'd like to direct to the Planning Department before we proceed. Yes, Member
Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One of the components that is required and I know we had,
we received some narrative forms, but, Mr. Director, do you have some type of financial
perspective or attachment that you could share with the Committee, so maybe as some of
the, as part of the reviews if there's some type of goal or objective that we looking at for
people like me? It makes more sense if I can see dollars and whatnot attached so I can
kind of put it in a reference point of whether or not it's a reasonable or totally
pie-in-the-sky type of request for consideration.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Madam Chairman. Councilmember Hokama, the financial portion
of the plan is in the appendices of the, of the larger documents.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Spence, -COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Ok.
CHAIR BAISA: --just a second. I don't know if the new Members if you have a copy of that in
your offices. If you don't, we'll try to get you some. You should have a copy of the
Countywide Policy Plan that's been approved and you should have the Maui Island Plan.
If you don't have it, we'll get you one.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. And then, then, Madam Chair -CHAIR BAISA: Yes?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --then maybe all we need from the Director, if you could
please, is just maybe send us some type of indicator of what portion of, of those volumes
of documents will you share with us, that we can refer to, please.
MR. SPENCE: Okay, happy to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: That's good enough. Yeah. Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Member, Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just for Mr. Summers, 'cause I didn't catch
all of your statement in regards to the policy plan; I had written down here provide
guidance for and continue...
MR. SUMMERS: Okay. The, the, the, the policy...the policy documents, the policy provisions
in the Maui Island Plan, as well as the Countywide Policy Plan do provide direction for
future regulations, for future programs, for future activities of the various agencies.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, good, thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Any other questions, Members? Member Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair Baisa. Thanks for the great presentation.
That was good. Does anywhere in the document, in its present form, address our current
aging infrastructure versus just future stuff?
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Summers.
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you. Yes, we do have in the infrastructure chapter, as well as the
long-range implementation plan sections in the narrative that describe, that describe or
address the challenges associated with our aging infrastructure. We've also got in the
technical studies, some issue papers that address that important topic. So we can point
those to you as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, good, being that's my Committee, it's good place to
look. And also in all the outreach, you know, to community, getting input from various
groups and voices, you feel at this point, this document is very well representative, it's
pretty, you know, of, of this community, or I know you said there's still more work to be
done. So is that in relation that we really need to get back out there and get more voices
being heard?
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Summers or Mr. Spence, whoever?
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MR. SUMMERS: Well, one point, I've never seen a comprehensive planning effort with more
attempts at public outreach than this effort. That being said, there's still folks out there
that maybe, maybe haven't heard of the project or may be affected, so I think it's, it's
important that even though the, the outreach to date has been very robust that we continue
to do everything we can whether it's the coconut wireless, the internet, Akaku shows, to
try to get people informed. The more we can do that, you know, the happier things will
be over the long term and, and, and the less surprises we'll, we'll possibly encounter at
the end, so I think it's been great but let's not stop.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
MR. SPENCE: Madam Chairman?
CHAIR BAISA: Yes, go ahead, Mr. Spence.
MR. SPENCE: I'd like to add just a couple of comments to that. This is...has been one of the
most widely, as staff is saying, this has been one of the most widely publicized planning
efforts for our County and particularly for the island. Numbers and numbers of meetings
with the General Plan Advisory Committee, and we will have Mr. Dick Mayer to...also,
because he went to all those, he was a part of all that effort, he'll make...making a
comments on that. But the...inevitably, you know, after front page stories, third-page
stories, over and over again, there will inevitably be members of the community that say I
never knew about this--it's just a part of the, the nature of, of it--I didn't know that this
was happening. We will continue...I mean all of these meetings, of course, are open for
public comments, they get televised. We will continue to reach out to the community as
a part of this effort to gain public input.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Good, I'm glad you think, think that that's very important.
MR. SPENCE: Yeah, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much Ms. Cochran. The Chair has had lengthy discussions
with the Committee that prepares for these meetings, and we've talked about trying to do
a lot more public relations and media on this whole effort. And that's why I was so
happy that we had this workshop today, it's on Akaku. A lot of people who tune in to
watch the County Council will now have the opportunity to see what we saw today,
which I think is very important. Because I go to meetings with my contemporaries and
they say to me, "What is your new job on the Council?", and I say I have the General
Plan Committee and they look at me like what is that? And I'm so disheartened because
I spent years going to GPAC meetings and I think this is such a big deal, and I have
colleagues who say, you know, what is the General Plan? So the work is before us, it's
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the, before every single one of us. If any of us get invited to a service club, get invited to
a organization, association, families, any opportunity where you can talk about this, I
think it's important that we all help to do this public relations effort. You know, I think if
we all take the opportunity to talk about it, invite people to our meetings, tell them what's
going on, I think we can do this. We don't have that many people in Maui County; we
ought to be able to get the word out. But we are going to make a conscious effort, and I
ask you to also help me do that.
And along those lines as part of our workshop today, we're not quite finished with the
workshop mode; we have one more little piece we wanted to...we have a volunteer who
has been working very, very hard on the General Plan. He served on the GPAC as the
Vice-Chair and I think attended just about every meeting that they've had. And I want to
thank the GPAC Members that are here today. Our chair Tom Cannon is in the audience.
I think he...he...wave your hand, Tom, so that...Members, that's Tom, if you don't know
him And we also have Lucienne and we have Dick and anybody else...did I miss
anybody? No. Of the 25, we have 3 faithful here today. These guys have been tireless.
They have gone to hundreds of meetings and they have sat there for I think thousands of
hours. I spent better part of two years going to GPAC meetings, so I do have some idea
of the, you know, dedication that they've put into this thing, and so, Mr. Mayer, if you
would please come and share with us a little bit. He wants to talk to us about public
outreach efforts and the public review efforts that have been done. He'll just be brief.
Thank you.
MR. MAYER: Thank you very much and thank you, Council Members, and thank you, Gladys,
for, Chair, for attending so many of our meetings.
CHAIR BAISA: ... (laughter)...
MR. MAYER: I'm going to read something here that I prepared for today. I think that would
give you some background and really answers also the question from Councilmember
Cochran.
As you may know, Maui County Code, Chapter 2.80(B) specifies that the General Plan
Advisory Committee remains constituted until the General Plan is completely adopted.
In other words, that GPAC job is not done, we're still constituted. As Vice-Chair of the
25-member GPAC, I will try to give some background on the preparation of the Maui
Island Plan. Maui Island Plan reflects a considerable amount of both professional
planning expertise and extensive public participation. The draft below, the draft now
before the Council is the result of so much input: comprehensive technical preparation
by professional planners, input from literally thousands of hours of testimony,
recommendations and suggestions from Maui's residents; and a formal review process
with extensive discussion, compromise, and eventual adoption by the Maui Island
General Plan Advisory Committee, the Maui Planning Commission, and further review
and recommendation by the Planning Department and its Director.
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So, what will, what makes up the document that you have before you? First of all, there
was technical and professional input. The County's Planning Department gave out
contracts to numerous professional consultants to investigate a large number of the
components that would be needed to assemble a plan. And here's a list of them, I'm not
going to read them all, but you can see this really wide variety of housing,
socio-economic population stuff, infrastructure, costs, all kinds of documents that went in
even before we began working.
Going to the next page. Then there was resident and community input. Concurrently, as
the documents, as the technical material became available, the Maui Island Plan's public
participation process began in 2003, when the County's Maui Economic Development
Board launched a comprehensive public participation process to plan for Maui's future.
Focus Maui Nui was designed to reach under-represented groups. It held 167 meetings.
Groups rarely heard from, the people who don't come to this forum here, rarely heard
from in public formats (the homeless, at-risk youth, seniors, Head Start parents, and
ethnic and language minorities such as Tongans and Hispanics, who usually wouldn't be
coming here), were engaged on a variety of local issues, representing all planning
districts and a range of demographic groups as broad as the population of this island.
These participants carefully articulated what they viewed as the key challenges facing
Maui.
The effort brought together over 1,700 participants for small-group participatory sessions
to begin to define a vision for Maui's future. Residents articulated what they viewed as
the key priorities to guide future actions and decision-making. The purpose of Focus
Maui Nui was to capture and refine local needs, priorities, and core values and to identify
potential strategies for addressing these challenges. Since the Plan is intended to be a
statement of residents' current needs and desires, the draft Maui Island Plan incorporated
the recommendations of Focus Maui Nui participants. So in other words, it has a very
broad base to begin with.
Then there were two sessions, WalkStory and PlanStory, these were one-day workshops.
The Maui County Planning Department then conducted additional public participation
events. WalkStory was designed to encourage participants to consider how the vision
and strategies that resulted from Focus Maui Nui sessions could be considered when
thinking about the landscape. PlanStory offered community members the opportunity to
provide input into the key issues facing Maui with regard to growth and related impacts;
discussions of options for development, settlement patterns, infrastructure, and protected
lands; better understanding, better understood the implications of developing housing at
different densities. What kind of housing do people want?
More valuable input to help enrich the Maui Island Plan resulted from the Planning
Department's participation in group discussions sponsored by Maui Tomorrow and the
Wailuku Main Street Association. In addition, from January 2006 through February
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2009, the GPAC took extensive public testimony at every one of their meetings, held
special meetings at which all major and minor developers could propose the
incorporation of their projects within the urban growth boundaries, and held multiple
public meetings in each community plan district during evening hours and on Saturdays.
I am pleased to report that the Plan before you is the result of the most extensive, public
outreach effort ever conducted on Maui. And I just want to add here, those meetings
which were held in West Maui--we had several there--were all-day events. In Hana, the
whole group, 25 went out there to hear the comments. South Maui, several long meetings
on Saturdays and sometimes on evenings. But in every case, we had lots of people
talking from each of the districts of the island.
And then we had the final review process itself after getting all that input. Maui County
Code, Chapter 2.80 requires the creation of a separate General Plan Advisory Committee
for Maui, Molokai, and Lanai. For Maui Island, six GPAC members were appointed by
the Mayor and 19 by the County Council. Let me interject here, the way, the 19 members
from the County Council was three from each; like West Maui, three from South Maui,
et cetera, you know, Upcountry, Paia and four from Central Maui because it has a larger
population base. That's how we got the 19 members, and then the Mayor appointed one
member from each of the six districts, community plan districts on the island.
The role of the Maui GPAC was to provide comments, advice, and recommendations to
the Planning Director on both the Countywide Policy Plan and the Maui Island Plan. The
25-member GPAC was comprised of a broad cross-section of residents representing the
diversity of Maui: different ethnic and age groups, different political philosophies and
industries. It included a past president of the Maui Chamber of Commerce, former
executives for both A&B and Maui Land and Pine, an environmentalist, a president of the
Maui Contractor's Association, the president of the Maui Economic Development Board,
three farmers, a savings and loan manager, a realtor, a State legislator, a Police
Department employee, three former planning commissioners, an engineer and several
other groups represented.
To educate the public on what was taking place and how residents could give additional
input, the Planning Department and various GPAC members participated in a broad array
of forums. In other words, we went out ourselves to Rotary Clubs, radio shows, TV
shows, realtor conferences, community association meetings, public schools, et cetera.
The Planning Department and the GPAC members wrote viewpoints and the Planning
Department had Maui News ads informing people of the Maui Island Plan update and
how residents could give their input. And they did, they came to our meetings and they
spoke at length. So often did they speak at length that we had very little time to actual
make decisions, much like Council meetings where you're sometimes prevented from
getting the job done because you have to listen. We did a lot.
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The general public's comments were incorporated into the GPAC's recommendations
and can be found in the Plan's policies and the rural and urban growth boundaries. For
example, many residents stated that they did not want to see urban sprawl on Maui and
wished to have a plan that preserved Maui's beauty. Residents asked for pleasant
communities that would not require multiple lengthy, lengthy trips to schools,
employment, and shops. Accordingly, the draft Maui Island plan proposes that future
development be located near, near jobs, and with infrastructure that ties efficiently into
the existing systems. The Plan also recommends affordable housing and more compact,
pedestrian-friendly communities while concurrently respecting Maui's view corridors and
open space.
Subsequently, the GPAC proposals were thoroughly reviewed and amended by the Maui
Planning Commissioners over a six month period, that again included many public
hearings and numerous public meetings throughout Maui Island and, and in every district.
And from the Planning Commission, the draft was then transmitted back to the Planning
Department for additional review. The Planning Director then made the independent
professional recommendations for transmission to the County Council for your final
review and adoption.
Last page. Finally, the Maui County Council's own Planning Committee headed by its
former Chair Sol Kaho`ohalahala, last year went out to each community plan district and
gathered even more public input. The Committee then spent much of the past year
carefully reviewing and modifying Chapters 1...I thought they only had gone up to six
but apparently it was the seventh chapter.
In summary, the present draft Maui Island Plan is the cumulative result of an enormous
amount of professional expertise and public participation and input. There are some in
the community who have said that there has been a lack of public input. That's a slap in
the face I think to the unpaid GPAC Members, the volunteer Planning Commissioners
and your County Council Members who gave up numerous evening and weekends away
from family to listen to and represent Maui residents in this important project. The public
took, looks to you individually and collectively to provide the leadership that will be
needed. You'll be called upon to work together to compromise because you will not all
agree on the same viewpoint and to consider the alternatives of not completing this task.
The County has already spent several million dollars on the develop, on the development
of the Maui Island Plan. The County's professional staff in the Long Range Planning
Division has spent five years preparing this document. Numerous citizens have
volunteered their time on GPAC and the Planning Commission to advise the County.
Thousands of residents, literally, have given up their time to give input at many hundreds
of community meetings. After the Maui Island Plan is adopted, you will be able to
quickly initiate the work on the various community plans, and this is the goal we're
hoping for.
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Furthermore, the Maui Island Plan will immediately provide guidance to the
Administration and all of the departments on the policy directions of this County. Those
guidelines are overdue, and will be mostly, and will be most helpful. The Plan will
provide policy direction for the use and development of land, the extension and
improvement of transportation services and infrastructure, the development of
community facilities, the expansion of the island's economic base, the provision of
housing, and the protection of natural and cultural resources.
Finally, it will provide the foundation to set capital improvement priorities, revise zoning
regulations, and develop other implementation tools. As you deliberate on the Maui
Island Plan, I'm sure that most of, if not all of the Maui, of the, that most, if not all GPAC
Members, would continue to be willing to help the Council in any way that they may be
asked. Our Chair, Tom Cannon is here, and I'm sure the rest of the Committee would be
glad to, come and give their manao as well. And I wish you all the best in your
deliberations.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Mayer.
MR. MAYER: On the next page, you can see a list of the names of people who have been
participating, who participated in the earlier reviews.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you very much. Members, any questions for Mr. Mayer? Seeing none,
Mr. Mayer, thank you very much. We -MR. MAYER: Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: --appreciate your historical perspective. Members, are there any other
questions or anything else you'd like to discuss? Otherwise, the Chair would just let you
know that our next meeting is scheduled for February 17 th , and it will be another
Thursday afternoon at 1:30, of the General Plan Committee. The Chair intends that we
will begin with Chapter 1, which is the Chapter on population, just to get our feet wet,
we're gonna go easy with that; to familiarize ourselves with the matrix, and with the
goals and policies, and actions and all of the things that are in a matrix. Mr. Spence has
assured me that we will be able to post that three-column matrix along with the agenda.
Am I correct, Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: That's correct, Madam Chair
CHAIR BAISA: Good and so when we post the agenda, the matrix will also be available. It will
be available to everyone including the public, who I hope will take a look and print it out
and look at it, and if you have comments, please come prepared to offer... if you want to
change any of the wording I would appreciate your bringing that suggested wording.
Remember, the less time we spend wordsmithing and doing things that are
time-consuming the better the, the more time we gonna need. So the more we work

GENERAL PLAN COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

February 3, 2011

together and be prepared when we come here to move through the matrices, and approve
or disapprove or edit the statements, the faster we make progress. It is the Chair's dream
and you saw it in the PowerPoint that we can finish reviewing these Chapters before
Budget. We don't have that many meetings that, so we need to make efficient use of our
time. I will, like I said, go slow on the first meeting, because I think it's important that
we get in the groove of how the matrices are presented and how we will move through
them. After the first meeting, you'll feel more comfortable and I think for our second and
third meetings, we'll be able to maybe post two chapters. So, that is the Chair's plan.
Any comments from the Committee? Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. I know the Committee last year did lot of
work, so as we do the review process will we be getting the work that was done by
previous Committee?
CHAIR BAISA: Yes. The three-column matrix that you're going to have, that first column will
be the recommendations from the Planning Committee that you and I -COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Right.
CHAIR BAISA: --participated in, four of us did. And then there will be a column for
suggestions for revisions from the Planning Department and the new Director, and then
there will be a column for our final recommendation if we change anything.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
CHAIR BAISA: Okay. And then when we're through with each section, I would like to take a
final vote on that. When we went through it the first time, we went through it with the
idea that it was a first pass. I hope this time will be a second and final pass. We have got
to complete this work. You know, we're already far over our deadline and if we want to
get into the community plans we've got to complete the Maui Island Plan. So we've got
a lot of work ahead of us, and again I want to remind you of the seriousness of this
document. I think you heard the statement where Mr. Summers pointed out what this
document means and legally what it means. Want to repeat that again, John, that little
box that you said about guidance or law?
MR. SPENCE: Simone.
CHAIR BAISA: Oh, was it you, Simone? Whoever did it, let's repeat it one more time. I think
it's really important
MR. SUMMERS: Well, we had, we had several statements like that, but there was one
statement where we tried to answer the question, is this a guideline or a law, and it's
actually both. And it depends on how the policy statements are structured, so we're using
terms like require and shall, and those are statements we want to be very strong-law. If
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we're using words like "encourage" or "may", then those are softer statements. So
because we're addressing such a diverse range, range of issues it's not an either/or, okay,
we have to be specific to the issue that we're addressing and...
CHAIR BAISA: So I think it's important because if you realize that this work could possibly be
a law, I think it's important we do it correctly and that we spend the time and the
attention on what we're doing. Member, Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just a question for you, Madam Chair, or for maybe
Mr. Spence, our Director. While I do know that you wish this Committee to focus on the
Maui Island Plan -CHAIR BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and we're going to start next meeting with the
Chapter 1...maybe I can ask the Director, is there any reason why...and I won't speak for
Molokai and Mr. Mateo, but is there any reason why Lanai cannot move forward on its
Community Plan processing?
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Spence?
MR. SPENCE: Thank you, Madam Chair. Staff is already pursuing going forward with both the
Lanai and the Molokai Community Plans. Maybe Mr. Summers would like to
comment...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So, are you ready to have us...confirm names for the Lanai
Community Plan Advisory Committee membership?
MR. SPENCE: We are getting very close to that. And we will have...I think...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: What, what does "close" mean -MR. SPENCE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --Mr. Director?
MR. SPENCE: And I'm going to refer to Mr. Summers who is a lot more familiar with the, the
scheduling of all that.
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Summers, can you help?
MR. SUMMERS: Thank you very much. Yes, we are actively involved in the Molokai and
Lanai Community Plans, and the idea is to try to get the nomination of the CPAC for
those committees this spring, so that we can start work this summer. And we're, we're
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gonna have, try to feather it, so that Molokai's a few months ahead of Lanai in the review
process. So we'll be approaching it like that, but we're moving forward with both, both
plans. The reason the Maui Island Community Plans, it would be unwise to get too far
ahead of the directed growth boundaries.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm not.. .
MR. SUMMERS: So for Molokai and Lanai, we're fine, but for Maui we're...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: My concern is Molokai and Lanai.
MR. SUMMERS: Yeah, so we're good, we're, we're moving forward.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And the reason why you cannot have it move simultaneously
for both of our sister islands, and we're not "outer islands" we're "sister islands".
MR. SUMMERS: Right, right. We are, we are moving forward simultaneously. It's just that in
terms of the CPAC process, we're trying to provide a little bit of staggering there. We
think that will make it a little easier for staff.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We'll see. We'll see. Thank you.
MR. SPENCE: And if I...Madam Chair?
CHAIR BAISA: Go ahead.
MR. SPENCE: And when we are, when we're approaching Lanai and Molokai...I mean we are,
we will be adopting the entire Island Plan. I mean you'll gonna have your...the Island
General Plan and Community Plan rolled into one. You will be ahead of Maui at the end
of the, you know, at the end of the day when we're starting into Maui's Community
Plans. So, you're, you're sort of on the fast track, as far as these things go.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I will give you your opportunity, Mr. Director. Thank you.
MR. SPENCE: ... (laughter)... Thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just question regarding guidance or law.
Once, if, if we put language, you know, like "shall", "required" and all of those words
that make this document a law, on the community plan when we do the review, people
reviewing the community plan for those districts need to abide by this law. So, in other
words it's...so what I'm getting at is how does the people, the people of this district, you
know, plan the district?
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CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Spence.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Being pad up with, you know, words like "require" and
"shall", and they don't agree to those things.
CHAIR BAISA: Gentlemen? Mr. Summers?
MR. SPENCE: The...I know staff has comment regarding that, but the idea is, you know, you
have this overriding Maui Island Plan. If you say you shall preserve agriculture at all
costs or, you know, whatever the topic may be, when it comes to the community plan
they're not going to be able to say, "Pave over all our agricultural areas". You know, so
there's going to be consistency from, from Plan to Plan. The...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I'm, I'm, I'm looking more for the little guy, yeah.
MR. SPENCE: Yes, and I agree. There, there is going to be a lot more specific. I mean, the
"shalls" in this Maui Island Plan are going to apply to the community plan so it is very
important when we consider that. The...we are going to...one of the things that I will be
working with the Chair and this Committee on, especially as...with the growth
boundaries, because it's one thing to look at an Island Plan and say, okay, these are where
the growth boundaries are. When you get to the community plan level, you start, you
know, people of that community know things that perhaps may not have been included or
maybe should be included or should not be included when you get to the community plan
level, so there's going to be room for adjustments, when we get to that level.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So they won't be penalized with those requirements?
MR. SPENCE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, good.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. I had already had that conversation with
Mr. Spence, 'cause I was concerned that maybe community would get more into detail
and, you know, where the line is drawn maybe they weren't really sure where it was and
they want that moved a little bit, and if all the community wants it, then obviously we
need to fix.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR BAISA: So he said that we can do it then.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay, just so long they have that opportunity.
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CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Member, Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Madam Chair, thank you, and, Mr. Spence, to, to continue on
where Mr. Pontanilla left off. If there is conflict between the Island Plan and the
Community Plans which supersedes which? And I'll give you, yeah, a fictitious scenario.
The, the Island Plan says that the visitor ratio to residents is three-to-one, community says
I like visitors, it should be ten-to-one; there's conflict. Which supersedes which?
MR. SPENCE: It's going to be the Island Plan that supersedes, and I'm very cognizant of, when
I say I look at...what are the consequences of policies, I think of, I mean that's one
example I specifically think about. We're going to be very careful when these kinds of
things come up to this Committee and I will particularly draw attention to them.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So in essence it's kind of difficult for the communities, when
we...I know we haven't had that discussion yet, but at this particular junction, it's seems
like when we're ready to go to the communities, here we are saying to all these separate
communities, knock yourself out, tell us exactly what you think the community should
look like down the road as long as it fits these cubbyholes. Because the Maui Island Plan
is already giving them the directives and the guides so you know, it seems, you know, I
no like say it at this point, because so much has gone into it but are we putting the horse
before the cart?
MR. SPENCE: I understand...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Or the cart before the horse -MR. SPENCE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --or whatever the hell it is.
. . . (Laughter).. .
MR. SPENCE: I understand.. .
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I'm Filipino. I'm sorry.
. . . (Laughter).. .

MR. SPENCE: Yeah. Councilman Mateo, I appreciate that point of view and I've heard those
comments a lot, you know, maybe we should have gone community plan up to General
Plan. The...pretty much the way that the, the portion of the Code is written, you know,
the Island Plan is the umbrella for the rest of the community plans, so that's the way, you
know. I share that concern, you know, the different characters of the different
communities, and so as the different sections come up and the different policies, I'm, you
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know, I'll have my own suggestions for this Committee, but it's partially with an eye for
those exact kinds of things.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, thank you.
MR. SPENCE: And...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Madam Chair.
CHAIR BAISA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo. I already had that discussion with him, because I'm
one of those people that wondered about a broad umbrella, telling all the little people
underneath; who are in the communities and really know their communities and being
restricted. And I think what I'm getting is, as we go through the Chapters that we're
gonna go through it's imperative that we pay attention to what we doing, we have to be
careful and where we use "shall" and "must" and whatever. You know, we have to be
careful so this is not an exercise, Members; this is a very serious job that we're doing
here. Member Hokama?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So this is my understanding of the existing scenario then,
Madam Chair. Maybe Mr. Ueoka would need to maybe give us some preliminary
comment, if he can this afternoon but...
CHAIR BAISA: Unfortunately, Mr. Giroux is not here.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We already have an existing and current General Plan. We
also have existing current community plans that has gone through Council review and
approval. So let's say this moves for the Island Plan, but in the meantime, we still have
existing community plans that are in effect, so with the points raised by my colleagues of
conflict, 'cause those two documents went through a process, but maybe timing-wise the
community...this existing community plan has already gone through the process ten
years ago, well, maybe for some less than that, but so or how would Corp. Counsel view
on those conflicts, withstanding?
CHAIR BAISA: Mr. Ueoka? Sorry. Our regular Corp. Counsel assigned to this Committee is
not with us today. So Mr. Ueoka is helping the best he can. Mr. Ueoka, please?
MR. UEOKA: Okay. Yeah, I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, again, we understand, Mr. Ueoka. This is difficult.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, I would like to defer until Mr. Giroux or Mr. Hopper is here to further
advise. My understanding is that they have addressed this issue in the past. Apologies.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No, no, no, no, don't, don't apologize. I would rather you be
honest and not give us an answer that we cannot rely on down the road, so -CHAIR BAISA: Thank you, Mr. Ueoka. We'll, we...
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --in doing this. Can the Director maybe give us his
perspective because we do have existing Community Plans?
CHAIR BAISA: Whoever is able to answer best, please?
MR. SUMMERS: Just, just one point because this came up over and over again at the previous
Committee. This plan will not trump any existing community plan. In other words,
there's no provision in this Plan that would amend one of the existing community plans.
That would have to be done through a separate legislative act. And you know, Mike and
James can describe the details but that's what we understand.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. So, Mr. Summers, so the Committee is clear, those
current nine Community Plans Countywide or ten is in effect today and until we
re-review the next version of the Community Plans revision, those would be the guiding
documents for, for Planning Commissions of each island and the Council to refer to?
MR. SUMMERS: Yes, that's my understanding. You'd look at, you'd look at both documents.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much Mr. Summers, thank you.
CHAIR BAISA: Members, any additional questions? Seeing none, the Chair would like to
thank the Planning Department for their work today. I really appreciate it; I know how
much it takes to do these things. I'd like to thank Mr. Ueoka for volunteering to come
today. I'd like to thank my Members. We're embarking on a very difficult journey as
you know, but fasten your seat belts we'll get through it. Yes, we've done other things
like this, we can do it piece-by-piece. All I ask you is please, please do your homework
because it will make it a lot easier if you come prepared. I'd like to thank my Staff and
everyone for coming today, the testifiers and the people that are here. I know you're
devotees of General Plan. I've seen you at every meeting, whether it was GPAC or
Council or community or wherever, you were there. Thank you very, very much and
without further business, this meeting is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
ACTION: DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.
ADJOURN: 3:46 p.m.
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